THE GENEALOGY OF THE GROFF FAMILY
7 Le Sebastian Groff, b April 20, 1711 sy m Eva Weber ;

>
-

?
d. Octover 8, 1863.. 1 '] )
His will was probated January 9, 1771. He left a wife

Eva, and children 3 Micnhael, Sebastian, Andrew » Mary Magdalene,

Catharine lMargaret..

IXl. Andrew Groff. b, Sepiember 15, 1740 | y M. January 10,
1762, Catharine Crawford (daughter Christopher Crawford of Lan—
casver County), d. February 6, 1811 ;. They had seven sons
and nine daughters,
Margaret m Tressler, ds. April 4, 1882,
Elizabeth, b. Dec. 25, 1778 ; m. Nov. 23, 1800 Williem
Moore ; d. April 21, 1845, .
Catharine, m. Stoy, Wm. G (?) d. Oct, 10, 1844
Mary Megdalene m. Conrad Doll. liovs 1§, 1804

John ; Henry, d. May 29, 1835; George M. y d. May 29,1835 ;
v and others. . /D
. ‘ (G, Oren.. by !
III. Uary Magdalene Groff bﬁ’»«j_' 6,776 m. /:nrad DO11l Zuaw; (% 180

27
d. June (9. 1813. The children of Conrad and llary lagdalene Doll
L%

were:

‘ lof

1V. Catharine Elizabeth, b. Oct. 2, 1809 ; 4. Oct, 8, 1858 ;
®me Simon Guilford, May 6, 1830,

Vo |Mary Amn, b. pug, 2, 1369;d. (1) m. Dr. William Moore. zjes 3/, 1647
‘ . 187/ M.E‘,/?bo 7




—From ¥ THE HISTORY OF LANCASTER COUNTY, PEKNAY,
by Franklin Ellis and Samuel Evans.
(Pub, Everts and Peck, Phila, Pa., 1883.)

HANS GROFF.

Page 822,

The first settler in what is now West Earl Tp. was Hans
Groff. He was a refugeee from Switzerland, and about 1696 emigrated
Vo Germantown, where he remained several years and removed in 1717
to the Pequea Valley, and while hunting for stray horses found nis
way into the vale since known a8 Groff's Dales. The spot pleased
him 8o he removed his  family to the place, and soon after
purchased a large tract of land containing fourteen hundred and
nineteen (1419) acres. He built a small house within twenty yards
of the old and present mansion. He died in 1746, leaving six sons
and three daughters-— Peter, Samuel, Mark, Daniel, Hans,David,
Arna (wife of Peter Good ), Mary and Veronica (wife of Henry Landis)
David built the old mansion house,. ‘

Vest Earl boasts of having had within her bounds one

This stood on the south side of the Conestoga, right at the point
where the Cocalico unites its vaters with that stream. It was made
a corner of Warwick township when that district was organized in
1727, and only through that fact has its existence been preserved
from oblivion. How long it was there prior to that date is not
knovn. A visit to the spot (Aug. 29, 1876) resulted in a verifica—
. tion of the record ; the mill race 8t111 exists as plainly as it
did one hundred ani fifty—-four yeare ago, although no memory or
tradition of it has survived anmong those who live near the 8pot.
An ancient deed Covering the spot,was found, and mentions it as
a8 mill-site, and speaks of the mill-race, but the mill had even
then disappeared. Hans Groff, the first settler in these town-
ships was the builder and owner of this early mill.
Henry Landis, one of the sons—in-law of Hans Groff, on
Jan. 17, 1775, gave one acre of land for the purpose of a burying
place to certain bersons, in trust, for their use and that of the
relghborhood forever, This ig the grave—yard in Groff's Dale, and
vas 80 used manry years prior to its conveyance by deed of trust,.

.

Pege 925
Zre Grorr Farnily. The whole eastern vart of this ~Upper

Leacock-TcwBnlL wag included in a warrant of land granted to
dens Groff, who efierwards disposed of it vo different selrtlers.,.
Hare Groff, wiik one of nig brothers, was among the persecuted
Crrisiians who fled frop Switzerland vo Alsace, then a province of
France, avout the yeayr 1695-6. He came to Gernantown where he
remained for a shorty tipe only ; afterwards he settled in Pequea
Valley, but notv be g cortent there, he then settled in Graff's Dale
(Graff'es Thal), whicp &8 remed in honor of him, and by which
the geitlleze:t is ' nown ¢o this day. ’

a:f'e ; .'6 18 Tne circumstance which led Xr. Graff to
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L cvTHbv o Lhere, ne vhen settled in Graff's Dale
“&8 remed in honor of him, and by which

"own to this daye.

€ 18 tre circumstance which led lr. Graff to
¢+ liis horses having strayed from Pequea, while
& norihern direction from the inhabitedq parts

Pring in a heavily—-timbered 8pot, the head of

Elysian dale,%said he", I will fix my permanent
"8 pursued his horses %111 he found
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them, and returned to Pequea., A short time afterwards he
of his effects, when he returned to the spring, and aboutdﬁzfg':d
. mile down, on the north side, he erected a cabin under a large
white-—-oak, in which his wife and an only child remained during
that wintere *YIn the spring of the next year, having secured by a
warrant date Nov. 22, 1717, a large tract of land, he erected a
house near the cabin ,; the spot where he erected the house 1s
still pointed out by his descendents. He had six sons,-Peter,

David, John, Daniel, larous and Samuel— and was known as “Graaf the
Hunter® (Graaf der Jager )e

Hans Graff, after serving his day and generation, the
public on several occasions, and having divided his land among his
sons, died, leaving a large family connection. “Perhaps there is
no femily in Upper Leacock more respectable and more useful citi-
zens than the Grarfs.

SEBASTIAN GRAFF.

Sebastian Graff, the first ancestor of whom we have any
record, was born April 20, 1711 ; died, Octobver 6, 1763 ; married
Eva Weber. He was probadly from Switzerland and a member of the
Moravian Church as the records regarding him are found in the Moravian
Church records, in Lancaster, Pa. His will 1is dated February 15,
1763, but was not probated unvil January 9, 1771. He left a wife
Eva, and children ; Michael, Sebastian, Andrew, lMary Magdalene,

"and Catharine liargeret.

In the year 1722, Henry Neff, (Dr. Hans) received a patent
for three hundred acres of land where he was then sevtled- at the
asoutheast corner of Lanheim Township, on the west side of the big
Conestoga— from the English Land Company, who had five thousand,
five hundred and fifty-three acres, most of which lay in Lampeter
Tovmship. In the year 1738, Dr. Neff and his wife, France, sold
150 acres to Sebastian Groff, shopkeeper in Lancaster townshipe.

The homestead farm, grist-mill, saw-and oil-mills, Dr. Neffghave to
nis son Abraham, who also sold to Sevastian Groff, in 1750.

(See Hist. of Lanc. Co. by Ellis and Evans, page 905 )

Sebastian Groff moved into Lancaster severel years prior
to the incorporatvion of the porough , in 1742, and was the first
burgess, his term covering the years 1742 and 1743. For many years

he was prominent in tvhe management of borough affairs. He owned and

lived on the lend where now in the Lancaster Cemetery. In his will,

he provided that his executiors should lay out a portion of his land

into fourteern building lots. The house, still standing on the. .

corner of North Queen and Orange Sts., now Shobers Hotel, was built

by the Groffs in 1757, as a stone in front of the building testifies.
(See Hist. of Lanc. Co. Ellis and Evens, page 362. )

Ir Penre. Archives, 2nd series, vol. XVII p. there is a
record of one Bastian Graff, aged 25, who arrived in this country
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correr of North Queen and Orange Sts., now Shobers Hotel, was bulit
by the Groffs in 1757, a8 a sione in front of the dbuilding testifies.
(See Eist. of Lanc. Co. Ellis and Evens, page 362. )
Ir Penna. Archives, 2nd series, vol. XVII p.  there is a
‘record of one Bastian Graff, aged 25, who arrived in this country
on the ship, Princess Augustus, Samuel Kerchant, liaster, from Rot-
terdam, quelified Septemoper 16, 1736. Though there is no direct
evidence to connect this Bastian with our Sepastian, yet 1 am
convinced it was one and the same man, for the names are similar
and the ages exactly correspond. At the time of his arrivel in Pergon
there were Graffs living in Lanc. Co., who were probably relatives
~of his, and to whom he may have gone immediately upon his arrival,

The records of tvhe Phila., port were kept by English clerks who
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8pelled the name to suit themselves, Hence Bastian instead of
Sebastian, Graff is also spelled in records-— Groff, Grove, Grab,
Graav, Groof.

Il. Andrew (Andreas ) Graff, son of Sebastian Graff and wife
Eva, Born Septemper 15, 1740, dieg January 15, 1816‘;married Jan—
vary 10, 1762, Catharine Crawford ang had seven sons and nine
daughters, (See loravian Church records, )

Among the children were:.

¥argaret ,b ' m, Tressler ; d.April 4,1c22,

Elizabeth.;b. Dec, 25, 1778 » M. Nov.23,1800, to William Noore ;
d. April 21, 18450 :

Catharine ; v, m. Stby, de Oct, 10,1844,
lary liagdalene s b m. Conrad Doll
died

John Henry, died Feby. 22,1822,
George U, dieq Lkay 29, 1835 ang Others,

Andrew Groff, owned ani lived op broperty about a mile
from Lancaster City,northeast, on the Conestoga. The house
is still standing ang stones built in the wall bearing the
inscription *Anireasg— Catharine Groff, 1767w testily to the date
U1 er'sCiaun.On the Properiy was a grist mill,

‘ In the year 13812 Abraham Witmer anj John Groff (a descendent
of Hang Sroff, one of tne firsg burchasers in tvre ondon Tract in
1722) purchageq one hundred and forty—two acres and laid out the
village of Groffstown, adjoining the €astern boundary of Lancaster
city ; and also nirety-two acreg of land on the east side of Coneetoga
Creek, znd Opposite the first aentioned tract » from Andrew Graff,
Esq., son of Sebestian Graff, for Tifty thousand boundg. The
latter plot of ground wes a portion of Andrew Graff'g homestead,

(8ee Hist, orf Lanc. Co., Ellis angd Evans, p 907).

On July 15, 1776 the Committee of Salfevy directed Rocert
Towers Commiaeary, 10 deliver u certain number of rifles to Col.Geo,
Toss *"for the use of his Sailtalicr of Acsccistors¥, kentiop i8 mage
of the compeny of Czptein Andrew sraff. (Hisz, Lare. Cs. p 52 ;
ard elso "Capt. Ardrow srelf, *Ze:ra, Archives, 2r3 éerlee, vol,
# XLLI, p. 346) '

Capt. Arirew wrell‘wesg crn t-e CitTittee ce 8L2l.2erce,
- d

v ol rre
(See Pe:ra, Arcrivee, 252, Series, Ve, I11I, up 294, 2985 296 )
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(See Pe:ra, Arcr..vee, 2ni, Se

Capl. Ardrew Sroff wes a delegete to the Provincial Conference

neld in Carpenters Hall, Phila., on June 18, 1775, and on Jure 18,
‘1776« (See Archives 2nd Series, Vol. III, pp 636 ang 678..)

. Tre Provincicl Conferernce of Jae 1775, tnrew orf ine eutrority
. . ] ; - 2 Y =€

0 the Propriezory 5c ty 8:.2 >-8 Veoled wip fire power w0

provide gererslly for i:e lefence ¢f i, frevairce, Zery, Frerklin
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ne corveriicr of June 1776, arp.=.a Eipreze pelitical
eonirol of the Frovirce B:2 erested - 1530 an irderer je.s Elele,
‘ .
Thus A..drew Groff was e fourder 0f tze Simte 0l Perra,
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—*“—~nes§1an°“pr150nera“tnxen“at”TréntdﬁT“KTJ. Ihe prisoners at one time
numbered over iwelve hundred. )

The council of Safety'appointed & sub-committee to make
arrangements for sheltering these Prisorers ang among the twelve
men appointed for vhis service were Cept, Andrew Groff. and hig
brother Sebastian Groff, | ’

(See Hist. of Lanc¢. Co., Ellis and Evans p.61 )

Andrew Groff was appointed Jusvice of the Peace for the dis-
trict of Lancascer, Hempfield and lKanheim, Larch 5, 1737«

He was elected Associate Law Judge of Lancaster Co., Septembver
13, 1792, and continued in that oifice nineteen years, resigning
January 5, 1811. (Hist Lanc. Co., Ellis and Evans, pp 218 ang 225, )

The loravian records say "His end wesg sudden, '

Catharine Cravwford, wife of Andrew Groff, wae the daugnter
of Christopner Crawford, Christopher Crawford was Captain Lieutenant
of Standing Guard of Lancasver, in 1776.,. ‘

. See Hist, Pemma., Archives 2nd, Series, Vol.XIII P« 349)
also see will of Christopher Crawford. :

Sevastian Groff, (son of Sebastian 1lst and brother of Andrew)
b. larch 22, 1744 Ae July 2nd, 1791 » Me iarch 11, 1766 Catharine
Yourg. They had nine children. (loravian Church record, )
Sebastian Groff was a farwer by occupation. He represented
Lancaster County at the Provincial Convention for the province of
Perna., held at Pniladelphia, Jan, 23, 1775, and continueq by
adjournuent fron day to day 1o the 23th. (Penne, Archives, 2ngq
Series, Vol. III, p. 626)
The Convinental Congress, which sat in Carpenters Hall, Phila, R
from Septembver 4, to Oct, 25, formed and adopted as Association, the
> artvic.es of which were signed October 20th, 1774, by al1 the
Lembers presente.. The object of the Association was mutually to pPro—
mote the safety ang Euccess of the several colonies in their
resistance of the British Linistry ; and by one of the 2riiclee it
was required thatv a Committee of Observatiion ve chosen in every
county, civy or town, The Commitvee of Orwervation for Lancagter
Co., met at the Court House in Lancaster Jan, 14, 1775, a3 arong
the eight men elected to represent the coulty &% The Provircial
Convenvion was, es noteq above, Sebasy.my 9T0Il. ..
Hie was County Comriseion.r ip 1?“6»"53 ¥e8 Siule Seraver
from Lancaster Cowriy at the first meetiis OF Toe Ferra. meoqnno
TUre 4 YIrI0GN
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He was County Comzission.r in 1756, axd ¥es Slute Serpicyr
from Lancaster Coursy at the first meeti:s 0F 3ne Ferra, “tgisla-
ture in 1790, .

(See Hist. Larc. Co., Ellis ari #v8L8, pp 213 & 2lo.)

Elicaneth Groff, deughier of Ansrew and C:th&;;ne Groff, v,
-Ree, 25, 1776, d. April 21, 1645 ; m. ov, ©3, 1800 to William
Moore. Thney nad no children.‘ .8 (a 20na, Feb,. 1804)
¥illia~ loore was the son of Ja- cintil, of Prc:euz.nt
and Francigc loore, Born in Lonjonderry, 1*
parertage, Dec, 1, 1772 ; d. iay 9, 1841, _, jedanse, Pley v ere ne
Zmigrated 1o America and locate? Ly e8T 00 Nicoe by Cum-
ergaged in tre mercantvile business et the e »elancr an:o..l Bar)
land streets, on the sitve now occupied ¢}  ,5i13:4 Bary ..y 1:;. *

He was one of the organizers of the Leoar

-4 -



TTTTTTTTTATTVPIesliuvnv; o Em cvilace ne neia-for’ WALy YEeRTE:  WEB CIIlel purs——
gess of Lebanon in the year 1732.. Al8o a director of the Berks and
Dauphin Turnpike atv tne Harrisburg Bank and of the Tide Vater Canal.

In his family bible ere found records of other members of hie
) femily who emigrated to America. lrs. J. (?) lMoore, cousin, d.
Aug, 8th, 1822 ; John (7) loore, uncle d. April 6, 1822 ; krs. Jam.(%)
lioore, aunt d. Sept, 1, 1822 : Ann Moore, aunt d. Septu,ll, 1822,
krs. W. lioore, aunt, d. Aug, 27, 1816 ; W. lioore, uncle, d. April.
1823 ; James Moore, father. d. Feb, 22, 1824 ; John lLioore, brother, Oct
' 31, 1830 ; Rosann Moore, sister, d. July 10, 1829 ; John oore, 2nd
cousin, d. Abril 9, 1834 ; John koore, first cousin, Lewisburg,Pa.,
d. Sept, 20, 1835 Eliza (Loore) Love, sister, d. 1822. “Racneel
loore, d. 1823 ; Lydia loore, sister, d. Jan, 29, 1839 ; 12 o'clock
night ; Ann (loore) Gray, sisver, d. July 29, 1é43 » Catharine (loore)
Henderson, sister, d. Aug, 7, 1343 jJohn Henderson, d. July 28,1840,

Kres and kre. William loore are buried in the Tabor (old) ‘
Gerzan Reformed Graveyard, corner 10th and %alnut Sircets, Lervanon,
Pa.
lary legdalene Grorff, b., de
: Conrad Doll,

The children of Conrad and lary MagdalenefDoll were,

 Latharine Elizabeth, b. Oct. 2, 1809 ; d. O:%, 8, 1858, m.
Lay 6, 1830 Simeon Guilford, C. R

Kary Acn, b. Aug, 2, 1309 ; d.
me Williaw Loore, ii. D. of Vomelsdorf, Pas

Catharine Elizaveth was named for her sunts Catharine (Groff)
Stoy, and £lizabeth (Greif ) lioores

Owing 1o the death of their parents the daughters becane
orphans at a very early age. The elder Catharine Elizabeth, was
only three and one-half years old when her mother died, and about
iwo and one—quarter years of age at the time of the death of her
father. Consequently, the childiren were taken care of by their
relavives, the elder dauvghter,Catharine, lived for some years
with her aunt , lirs. Tressler, afterwards with her aunt Mrs. Stoy,and
upon completing her educatvion, with her aunt lre. Vm. Loore, of
Levanon,Pa. until her rarriage to Simeon GuilTorde

The younger daughter, liary Ann, lived with her aunt Lrs.
ioore, of Lebanon, from infancy to the time of her marriage to
Dr. Vme. loore, of Womelsdorf,Pa.

Both daughiers ativended Linden Hall Seminary, Lititz, Pa,,
for seven years, and subsequently became students at lLrs. Braizley's
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oore, of Lebanon, from infancy to the time of her marriage to
Dr. Vm. loore, of Womelsdorf,Pa,.

Both daughters atiended Linden Hall Seminary, Litisz, Pa.,
for seven years, and subsequently became students at lLrs. Braizley's
a fashiorable finishing school in Phila., wnere they remained for

severzl years.
From old accounts ofVm. Loore, we find that they were instruct-

ed in vocal and instruzental music, drawing and painting, dancing
and embroidering, in addition to the regular course of studies.

" Both were active members of the Reformed church.

_ ¥rs. Catvharine Doll Guilford reeided in Lebanon after her
marriage, and is buried at Mt.Levanon Cemeterye.

lirse. lkary Ann Doll Moore lived and is buried in Vomelsdorf,Pa.

For the record of the children of Simeon and Catharine Guil-

 ford, see, “Geneology of the Guilford Family.,"
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